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Iowa Department of Justice 
Crime Victim Assistance Division 

Automated Victim Notification RFP 
Questions and Responses 

 
1. Can you provide the following statistics as monthly amounts for the period 

beginning Jan 2016 thru the current month (Note, monthly statistics help to 
establish trend data that can be used to project)? 
• Number of incoming calls that require operator assistance:  We are unable to 

provide this information.  
• Number of incoming calls with no operator assistance: We are unable to provide 

this information.  
• Number of Registrations by Phone: see attached  
• Number of Registrations by IVR: see attached 
• Number of Registrations by Operator Assistance: see attached 
• Number of Registrations by Web: see attached 
• Number of Registrations by Data Exchange: None 
• Number of Registrations by Other Means: None 
• Total Number of Registrants: see attached    
• Number of Anonymous Registrants: All registrants in current system are 

anonymous. 
• Number of Events requiring Email Notifications: see attached 
• Number of Events requiring Phone Notifications: see attached 
• Total count of phone notifications attempts: see attached   
• Number of Events requiring SMS Notifications: see attached  
• Do you provide notifications via letter? If so, number of Events requiring Letter 

Notifications:  No/None 
• Number of Events requiring other types of notification: None   
• Number of Offenders with Registrants: We are unable to provide this information.    

 
*CVAD is also providing custody status informational searches for the same time period broken 
down by phone and web-based searches. 
 

2. What is the current recall schema? What is the average number of call attempts per 
phone notification?   

Calls are made every 30 minutes for 24 hours until the correct PIN is entered to confirm and stop 
the notification calls.  If an answering machine or a person answers a call and the correct PIN is 
not entered, then calls will be made every 2 hours for the remainder of the 24-hour period.  

Over the last year there were 23,052 phone events and 315,806 outgoing phone calls.  

3. Is registration open or closed? If closed, how are victims registered? If open, are 
victims able to identify themselves as such as part of the registration process? 

Registration is open and victims are not identified during the registration process.  
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4. What restrictions, if any, are placed on registration?   

No restrictions are placed on registration.  

5. Do you use a categorization schema for notification event types? If so, please 
describe.   

CVAD is not sure what is meant by “categorization schema.”  There is no centralized booking 
system in Iowa nor is there a centralized offender data collection agency.  The Iowa Department 
of Corrections and each of the state’s county jails (“the Sites”) update custody status changes in 
their internal systems.  Custody status code changes are communicated to the current Vendor 
through data exchange and those changes trigger the dissemination of a notification to registrants 
with language specific to the custody status change. 

6. What is your current list of events for which Notification is provided?  

General release; transfer; escape; return from escape; death; unsupervised custody; transfer to 
Department Of Corrections (hereinafter “DOC”); DOC general release; DOC escape; DOC 
death; DOC return from escape; DOC return to custody; DOC unsupervised custody; DOC 
transfer; agency outage; agency restored; DOC revoked to county jail; agency online; agency 
offline; automated resync notification; DOC return from abscond; DOC return from interstate 
compact; returned to custody; DOC transfer to another jurisdiction)   

7. What restrictions, if any, are placed on notification?   

No restrictions are placed on notification. 

8. Are there other events for which you wish to provide notification that you currently 
do not? What data source would provide data for these events? 

We do not anticipate providing notification on any events other those currently listed. However, 
if a Respondent has the capability to provide notification on additional events, they should so 
describe.  

9. Can you provide details as to the current data exchanges for jails and DOC: 
(waiting for Appriss) 
• Number of Jails using VN-SSP for data exchange 
• Number of Jails using flat file for data exchange 
• Number of Jails using other methods for data exchange (please list all types and 

counts) 
• List of Jail Management Systems used by jails within the state   
• Data Exchange used for Corrections Offender Management data   

The following booking systems are used by jails within the state:  

Cushing Technologies, Inc.. DSI, Emergitech Inc., eMerts, Inergraph Public Safety, OSSI Pistol, 
PCS, Shield, Sleuth, Smart PSS, SunGard, TAC 10, Vision AIR, Zuercher Technologies 

As of August 2019, 69 jail have a vendor device installed; 28 jails and the Iowa Department of 
Corrections have a direct FTP data feed.  

10. Is a separate contract/agreement required for each jail or agent?  

Yes – separate agreements are currently required for each of the Sites.  
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11. How many users will need access to the admin portal?  

We anticipate having 50-100 active users of the admin portal.  

12. How many unique roles will admin portal users have?   

Admin portal user roles should be limited to type of use.  We anticipate 3 role types for admin 
portal users.    

13. Can you define the features of the admin portal that each role will require?   

Admin portal users will have the following features based on role type.  

- System admins will have access to all system information, including data on all offenders 
active in the system.  System admins will have the ability to  

o Modify, disable and delete individual registrations;   
o Turn off and/or block individual notifications; 
o Manually override offender status information at any facility in the case of outage 

or emergency; 
o Run reports on system-wide offender data.   

- Agency admins will have access to offender data limited to the individual Site with which 
they are affiliated.  Agency admins will have the ability to:  

o Modify, disable and delete individual registrations for offenders in the Site within 
which they are affiliated.  

o Turn off and/or block individual notifications in the Site within which they are 
affiliated.     

o Manually override offender status information at their Site in case of outage or 
emergency.  

o Run reports on Site offender data.  
- Read-only admins will have access to view offender data and reporting features but will 

not have the ability to make changes to registrations, notifications or offender custody 
status data.  
 

14. Apart from Notification for Custody Changes and Events, what other Services 
would the solution provide? 

Please see the RFP for a description of the services we anticipate providing by the solution.  

15. What is the average Prison population? 

8,447 as of June 30, 20181 

16. What is the average Supervision population?  

1,337 as of 2010 and 3,815 as of 20182 
17. What is the average daily jail population across all jails? 

                                                           
1 Fineran, S. (2018). Iowa prison population forecast FY 2018-FY 2028. The Correctional Policy Project.  
2 Fineran, S. (2018). 
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1,127 (this number is only for Iowa’s largest county, Polk County Jail, the total average for all 
jails could not be found.)3 

18. Are vendor staff required to undergo security / background checks? Can you 
provide information regarding these requirements? 

Security / background checks may be required.  For additional information, please see 
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_poli
cy.pdf.  
 

19. Do Call Center staff need to undergo background checks if they will not have access 
to offender data that is not already publicly available? 

Security / background checks may be required.  For additional information, please see 
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_poli
cy.pdf.  
 

20. Does CVAD currently use Microsoft Office 365? Dynamics 365?  

CVAD uses Microsoft Office 365.  

21. Does CVAD prefer an on-premise solution or a cloud-based solution?  

CVAD is interested in evaluating the benefits of an on-premise solution or a cloud-based 
solution.  

22. If a vendor other than the incumbent is selected, is migration of historic data 
required? If so, roughly how many records will be migrated?  

CVAD does not anticipate migrating historic data.  

Questions regarding the RFP:  
23. Section 2.5 (page 6): The RFP states that “CVAD will post all amendments to the 

RFP to its website located at https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-
victims/iowavine”. This link opens a page on the Iowa Attorney General website 
regarding the VINE program. We do not find the RFP there or any section 
regarding the RFP. Is this the correct site to look for amendments? 

A link to the RFP has now been added to the webpage referenced above and in the RFP.  The 
direct link is: https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine/automated-
victim-notification-request-for-proposal.  Any additional information will be posted on that page.  

24. Section 4.2, item 1.3 (page 24): by using the term “allow”, does that indicate that the 
system can also allow victims to provide additional personal information apart from 
phone number and email? 

Yes; however, the system must allow for anonymous registration.  

25. Section 4.2, item 1.5 (page 24): is registration by calling a toll-free number referring 
to IVR registration, operator assisted registration, both, or something else? 

                                                           
3 https://apps.polkcountyiowa.gov/PolkCountyInmates/CurrentInmates/Statistics  

https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://ocio.iowa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018/10/ocio_background_investigation_policy.pdf
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine/automated-victim-notification-request-for-proposal
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine/automated-victim-notification-request-for-proposal
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine/automated-victim-notification-request-for-proposal
https://www.iowaattorneygeneral.gov/for-crime-victims/iowavine/automated-victim-notification-request-for-proposal
https://apps.polkcountyiowa.gov/PolkCountyInmates/CurrentInmates/Statistics
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Registration could be accomplished through IVR registration or operated-assisted registration.  A 
Responsive Proposal should indicate which method(s) Respondent would provide.  

26. Section 4.2, item 1.7 (page 24): does the ability to update, change or cancel 
registration info via a toll-free telephone number refer to IVR registration, operator 
assisted registration, both, or something else? 

Updates, changes or cancellation of a registration could be accomplished through IVR 
registration or operated-assisted registration.  A Responsive Proposal should indicate which 
method(s) Respondents would provide.  

27. Section 4.2, item 1.9 (page 24): what is in view with the requirement to disseminate 
automated notifications by “the Internet”? 

Inclusion of the phrase “the Internet” in this sentence was by error.  CVAD will require that the 
system disseminate automated notification by telephone, email and text message.  

28. Section 4.2, item 1.9 (page 24): the requirement to meet the “within 15 minutes of a 
custody status change” assume within 15 minutes of receipt of data indicated a 
custody status change? 

CVAD anticipates that the system will collect updated data from the Department of Corrections 
and the counties pursuant the requirements set out in Section 4.2, item 1.2 (page 23).  
Notifications must be disseminated within 15 minutes of the receipt of updated data; preferably, 
notifications will be disseminated immediately upon receipt of updated data.  

29. Section 4.2, item 1.9 (page 24): does the requirement provide notifications 24 hours 
per day allow for limitations of after-hours notifications (those taking place late at 
night or early in the morning) based on reduced urgency of the event for which 
notification should be provided?  

The current system provides for the following delays:  

- Normal with Delay: Transfer notification calls will be delayed for 4 hours from the time 
the record is received by VINE.  

- Non-Emergency with Delay: Calls will be made every 30 minutes between 7:00am – 
10:00pm for 24 hours or until the call is confirmed.  Calls are confirmed and stopped by 
entering a PIN.  If an answering machine or a person answers a call and the correct PIN is 
not entered, calls will continue every 2 hours for 24 hours between 7:00am and 10:00pm.  
Death notification calls will be delayed for 24 hours from the time the record is received 
by VINE.   
 

30. Section 4.2, item 1.10 (page 24): does CVAD have in mind specific sensitivity 
training? 

No. 

31. Section 4.2, item 1.11 (page 24): can you provide details as the level of similarity that 
local agency users should have? 

Local agencies (or “Sites”) should have agency access.  See above for a description of that 
access. 
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32. Section 4.2, item 1.13 (page 25): what is intended by “Site” regarding the 
requirement for statistics “by Site”. 

“The Sites” are defined in Section 4.2, item 1.1 (page 23).   

33. Section 4.2, item 2.2 (page 25): which languages are required? 

The system currently provides system access and support in English, Spanish, Somali and 
Bosnian.  Respondents should explain their ability to accommodate the languages currently 
offered as well as additional languages.  

34. Section 4.2, item 4 (page 25): what data exchanges are in view for web service/API 
consumption? 

We are providing the following as an illustrative example of the type of data exchange in view 
for web service/API consumption: A text file (VINE.txt) is created and transferred via secure 
FTP. The file contains two different records types: population records and movement records. 
The file containing population and movement records is transferred daily at 4:00 AM. Files 
containing only movement records are transferred hourly between 5:00 AM and 10:00 PM. 
Record structures are provided below. The files are compressed (VINE.zip) and password 
protected prior to transfer.   
 

35. Section 4.2, item 7.1 (page 26): is this a capability that you currently have? 

Yes. 

36. Section 4.2, item 8.1 (page 26): can such data elements be provided as optional for 
the registrant? 

Yes; however, registrants must have the ability to register anonymously.  

37. Section 4.2, item 9 (page 26): what is the maximum number of unique designees that 
will require access to the described portal? 

CVAD anticipates 50-100 designees with system and agency access.  

38. Section 4.2, item 9.5 (page 26): can you provide samples or detailed requirements 
for the reports you are seeking? 

The system should have the ability to create customizable reports that can pull any and all data 
fields that have been input to the system.  Reports should be generated by the timeframe as 
indicated by the user.  The following are illustrative examples not intended to be exclusive: 
number of registrants broken down by individual Site; source of registration (i.e. phone, online) 
over a specific timeframe, type of notification generated over a specific timeframe (i.e. phone, 
email, text); number of offenders with registrations.   

39. Section 4.2, item 9.7 (page 26): is there a COTS “robust reporting tool” that 
administrative users currently use, such as PowerBI or Tableau? 

No. 

40. Section 4.2, item 9.8 (page 26): can you provide samples or detailed requirements 
for the dashboard you are seeking?  

The performance dashboard should reflect the following:  
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- any System or Site outages and the resolution status;  
- monthly System usage statistics such as number of informational offender custody status 

searches, number of new registrations and number of notifications (broken down by 
type); 

- any other relevant information reflecting the overall health of the system. 
 

41. Section 4.2, item 10.3 (page 27): what types of marketing and outreach are in view? 

Marketing and outreach could include development of a system name and logo (if needed), 
design of promotional materials (brochures, marketing materials, etc.).  Outreach may also 
include development of online training or webinars to promote the use of the system.   

42. Section 6.3.1 (page 63): based on the word “and” (bolded for emphasis) in the 
following statement, “Vendor’s Project Manager shall be at the Department’s site as 
needed during the course of work under this Agreement and will be available either 
in person, by telephone or e-mail to respond promptly (in no event more than 2 
hours after receipt of a request or inquiry from the Department) during the 
business day to inquiries from the Department,” is the Project Manager required to 
be onsite or is remote support, with occasional (regular or as needed) travel 
sufficient? 

The Project Manager may provide remote support with occasional or as needed travel on-site. 
 

43. May companies from Outside USA submit proposals? (like,from India or Canada) 

Yes, however, review the requirements set forth in the RFP and in the Professional Services 
Agreement. 

 
44. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or 

Canada) 

Yes, however, review the requirements set forth in the RFP and in the Professional Services 
Agreement. 
 

45. Whether we need to come over there for meetings? 

Please see section 6.3.1 (page 63) of the Professional Services Agreement.  
 

46. Can we submit the proposals via email? 

Please see section 2.7 (page 7) of the RFP for instructions for submitting the proposal.  



Offender Custody Status Searches

Between 01/2016 And 09/2019

Month Phone Searches Web Searches Total Searches

Jan-16 161 418226 418387

Feb-16 161 406479 406640

Mar-16 180 469205 469385

Apr-16 114 455769 455883

May-16 152 468003 468155

Jun-16 192 447199 447391

Jul-16 168 463459 463627

Aug-16 226 474076 474302

Sep-16 220 478718 478938

Oct-16 133 518248 518381

Nov-16 141 524316 524457

Dec-16 221 527591 527812

Jan-17 197 527361 527558

Feb-17 174 421053 421227

Mar-17 272 441757 442029

Apr-17 186 428070 428256

May-17 248 433572 433820

Jun-17 218 362945 363163

Jul-17 237 394861 395098

Aug-17 233 394339 394572

Sep-17 173 478129 478302

Oct-17 174 496857 497031

Nov-17 148 495180 495328

Dec-17 145 471585 471730

Jan-18 216 400668 400884

Feb-18 208 364942 365150

Mar-18 194 437036 437230

Apr-18 174 443032 443206

May-18 180 420932 421112

Jun-18 172 500567 500739

Jul-18 197 512189 512386

Aug-18 206 399536 399742

Sep-18 228 420736 420964

Oct-18 228 449444 449672

Nov-18 186 482025 482211

Dec-18 192 477193 477385

Jan-19 291 510442 510733

Feb-19 148 465897 466045

Mar-19 167 595058 595225

Apr-19 172 562061 562233

May-19 205 575337 575542

Jun-19 187 555804 555991

Jul-19 127 575651 575778



Aug-19 195 634991 635186

Sep-19 181 612828 613009

Totals 8528 21393367 21401895

Registration by Type

Between 01/2016 And 09/2019

Month   Phone  Operator  Web  Total 

Jan-16 12 26 5240 5278

Feb-16 16 18 5302 5336

Mar-16 18 18 5608 5644

Apr-16 14 13 5537 5564

May-16 13 16 5951 5980

Jun-16 13 28 5709 5750

Jul-16 16 15 6085 6116

Aug-16 19 21 6545 6585

Sep-16 15 19 6457 6491

Oct-16 14 18 6275 6307

Nov-16 9 23 6208 6240

Dec-16 14 16 6386 6416

Jan-17 20 13 6596 6629

Feb-17 9 10 6783 6802

Mar-17 10 8 7124 7142

Apr-17 14 24 6800 6838

May-17 7 13 6867 6887

Jun-17 12 20 6275 6307

Jul-17 14 24 6870 6908

Aug-17 14 21 7135 7170

Sep-17 15 17 7030 7062

Oct-17 11 6 6842 6859

Nov-17 6 13 6916 6935

Dec-17 12 13 6647 6672

Jan-18 13 17 6972 7002

Feb-18 12 12 6351 6375

Mar-18 17 15 7982 8014

Apr-18 12 16 8173 8201

May-18 16 11 8199 8226

Jun-18 9 18 8218 8245

Jul-18 11 13 8606 8630

Aug-18 4 28 8877 8909

Sep-18 13 16 8317 8346

Oct-18 17 22 8589 8628

Nov-18 9 6 7952 7967

Dec-18 12 17 8071 8100

Jan-19 18 26 8887 8931

Feb-19 14 12 7332 7358

Mar-19 9 11 9439 9459



Apr-19 11 16 8236 8263

May-19 16 39 8463 8518

Jun-19 16 11 8040 8067

Jul-19 9 18 8677 8704

Aug-19 27 8 9734 9769

Sep-19 18 10 9424 9452

Totals 600 755 327727 329082

Notification by Type

Between 01/2016 And 09/2019

Month Phone Events Phone Calls Out Text Events Email Events

Jan-16 1362 18541 3989 4857

Feb-16 1552 22030 4615 5352

Mar-16 2060 26801 5221 6360

Apr-16 2155 26543 4412 5698

May-16 1915 22473 4319 5499

Jun-16 2298 29394 4771 5908

Jul-16 2360 29501 4566 5944

Aug-16 2565 30986 5038 6180

Sep-16 1890 23801 5552 5614

Oct-16 1849 26016 5691 5479

Nov-16 1559 21541 5974 5516

Dec-16 1770 23564 6451 5898

Jan-17 1959 26858 7444 6657

Feb-17 1568 21944 6713 5844

Mar-17 1837 26336 7784 6770

Apr-17 1573 21354 6785 5349

May-17 1716 22804 7991 6378

Jun-17 1721 23803 7151 5933

Jul-17 1781 26512 7647 5881

Aug-17 1938 28810 8507 6647

Sep-17 1622 22808 7224 5845

Oct-17 1650 23831 7287 5826

Nov-17 1949 26378 8680 6612

Dec-17 1695 23111 7388 5417

Jan-18 1612 22372 7637 6045

Feb-18 1639 22159 8049 5583

Mar-18 1643 20240 7590 5510

Apr-18 1525 15389 7730 5293

May-18 1762 22553 8401 5767

Jun-18 1657 26654 7904 5468

Jul-18 1640 36231 8797 5790

Aug-18 2007 39387 10135 7088

Sep-18 1698 24764 8953 6035

Oct-18 1642 25117 8871 6330

Nov-18 1616 28439 8440 5811



Dec-18 1736 31098 9331 6259

Jan-19 1700 33351 8914 6072

Feb-19 1514 27709 7707 5567

Mar-19 1686 27924 8631 5848

Apr-19 1862 26406 9664 6548

May-19 1969 18608 9761 6649

Jun-19 1753 16206 8950 5851

Jul-19 1821 17659 9154 6436

Aug-19 2179 20396 10133 6690

Sep-19 1876 18129 9727 6277

Totals 80881 1116531 335679 268381
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